
) 
\ 

1409t:h meeting 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL Monday, ~8 February 1.966, 
at 3.~0 p.m. 

Agenda item '1: 

F ortieth Session 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 

Development of natural resouroes (oontinued): 
(~) Co-ordinated aotion in the field of water 

resouroes; 
(11) NQn-agrioultural resouroes; 

Page 

(Q) Water desalination in developing oottntr~es 51. 

Agenda item 5.· 
Report of the Seoretary-General on the aotivi­

ties of the Centre for Industrial Deveiopment 
pursuant to the reoommendations of the 
United Nations Conferenoe on Trade and 
Development (oonoluded) • ••••• , •••• , • 55 

Agenda item 14: 
Eleotions • •••••••• ·• • • ·• • • • • • • • • • • • • 56 

President: Mr. Tewfik BOUATTOURA (Aigeria). 

Present: 

Representativas of the following States: Algeria~ 
Cameroon, Canada, Chile, Czechoslovakia, Dahomey, 
Ecuador, France, Gabon, Greece, India, Iran, Iraq, 
Luxembourg, Morocco, Pakistan; Panama, Peru, 
Philippines, Romania, Sierra Leone, Sweden, Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of 
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United Republic 
of Tanzania, United States of America, Venezuela. 

Observers for the following Member States: Aus­
tralia, Byelorussian Soviet Social!st Republic, China, 
Denmark, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Malta, Mexico, Poland, 
Trinidad and Tobago. 

Observers for the following non-member States: 
Federal Republic of Germany, SWitzerland. 

Representativas of the folloWing specialtzed agen­
cies: International Labour Organisation; Food and 
Agricultura Organization of the United Nations; Untted 
Nations Educational, Soientific and Cultural Organiza­
tion: World Health Organization; International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development; World Meteoro:.. 
logica~ Orgariization~· 

The representativa of the International Atomlc 
Energy Agency. 

The representativa of the Contracting Parties to the 
General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade. 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

, Development. of natural resources (qontinued): 
(.g) Co-ordinated action in the fleldofwater resources 

(E/4138 and IE/41~8 (Summary))~ 

51 

NEWYORK 

(]2) Non-agricultura! resources (E/4132 and E/413'2 
(Summary))¡ 

(~) Water desalination in developing countries (E/ 
4142) 

.1. Mr. ELM (Iran) said that the Secretary-General's 
report on the development of non-agricultural re­
sources (E/ 4132) gave a good picture of United 
Nations activities in that field, actlvities which had 
the full support of his Government. The development 
of natural gas had received partic\llar attention in 
Iran, and a pipeline was to be constructed for the 
transport of gas from the south to the frontier with 
the Soviet Union; the pipeline would supply gas for 
domestic and industrial purposes to a number of 
cities in Jran and, in addition, considerable quantities 
would be exportad to the Soviet Union. Iran also had 
plana for the developme~lt of coal and iron ore 
resources, and a steel mill was to be butlt in Iran 
by the Soviet Union. The securing of markets for 
minerals was no less important a problem than were 
the techniques of exploration and exploitatton. 

2. With regard to water resources, an institute 
of hydro-geology had been established in lran ln 1965 
with assistance from the French Government, and a 
national committee . on hydrology. had been · set up. 
As a contribution · to the International 'Hydrologlcal 
Decade, an experimental basin had been chosen for 
a study of geologlcal, geographical, topographical 
and climatlc conditions. Iran was very interested in the 
questton of co-operation for the utilization of national 
ri ver basins, and had been one of the countries aiding 
the Mekong river project. An expert from the Food 
and Agricultura Organization of the United NatioJis 
(FAO) was soon to ·visit Iran in order to assist . 
in'the preparation of mt>dern water leglslatlon. 

3. His delegation was very satisfied With Unlted 
Nations actlvtties in the field of water desalination. 
Desalination planta had been established in some 
countries, but others were waiting for a decrease 
in the costa of desalination. Through tts stúdies, 
publications and seminars, the Organization was 
providing the developing countries With guidance 
concerning the economic application of . the most 
recent developments in water desalinatlon. 

4. The work progtanune undertaken by the Untted 
Nations was a sound one. but he would suggest 
that a study should also be made of brine dlsposal 
and its posslble effects on fish and marine life. 

5. He hoped that, as a result of the Organtzatton's 
efforts, a way would be found of desaUnating sea 
water at low cost, an achievement which would 
contrlbute greatly to the rapld develop~ent of many 
developing countries. 

6. Mr. KHALAF (Iraq) said that the Resources and 
Transport Division of the Secretariat was to be 

E/SR.1409 



52 Economic and Social Council ... ~ Fortieth Session 

commended for its efforts to assist the developing 
countries in the development of their natural 
resources. Much good work had also been done by 
other organizations of the United Nations family,. 
His delegation believed that the funds allocated for 
those purposes should be increased in view of the 
importance of natural resoqrces development for 
the developing countries. The Secretary-General's 
report (E/4132) mentioned the substantial part played 
by non-agricultura! products in the expo:rts of de­
veloping countries. The development of the mineral 
resources of those countries depended not on the 
Untted Nations alone, but on the Member States, 
and particularly the developed countries. The assist­
ance which the latter countries could p:rovide should 
be ohanneled, to the greatest possible extent. through 
the United Nations and the specialized agencies. 

7. Of the many forms which United Nations assist­
ance to developing countries had taken, his delegation 
favoured expansion of the regional projects in 
particular. 

8. Disappointment had been expressed concerning 
the slow progresa being made towards the goals of 
the United Nations Development Decade. His dele­
gation hoped that more rapid progresa would be made 
during the second half of the Decade. It would prefer 
to see projects financed primarily through the regular 
budget of the Organization. There was a great need 
fol' technical advice, and he hoped that the industrial 
countries would expand their assistance in that field, 
again preferably through the United Nations. 

9. The number of fellowships reported in the Secre­
tary-General' s report was inadequate and he hoped 
that the figure might be doubled in the coming year. 
With regard to the specific projects mentioned in 
the report, he noted that only three or four concerned 
the Arab countries. An effort should be made to 
ensure a more rational distribution of projects 
in the various reglons. When necessary, the United 
Nations could take the initiative in suggestingprojects 
to countries. The establishment of a small expert 
committee to consider possible projects might also 
be uueful. 

10. Mr. DJOUDI (Algeria) said that the Advisory 
Committee on the Application of Science and Tech­
nology to nevelopment had stressed the urgent need 
to assist developing countries in improving the 
exploration and development of their natural re­
sources. At the previous meeting, the Under-secretary 
for Economic and Social Affaire had drawn attention 
to the importance of non-agricultura! exporte for 
developing countries, and his delegation welcomed 
the valuable contribution made by the United Nations 
in that field. Algeria expected to benefit greatly from 
a project, appl'oved by the Governing Council of 
the Special Fund during 1965, wbich related to 
transport, the ma:rketing of hydrocarbons and in­
dustrializatton. 

11. His delegation welcomed and supported the 
Secreta:cy-Gener~' s proposals for the two-year period 
1966-1967, as well as those concerning a five-year 
survey programme. The surveys proposed would 
constitute an important contribution to natural 
resouroes development in the developing oountries 

and to ensuring their economic independence. Those 
countries must continua their efforts to develop both 
agricultura! and non-agricultura! resources. 

12. With regard to financing, his delegation agreed 
with the representa ti ve of Iraq that work on resources 
development should be financed primarily through the 
regular budget. 

13. Mr. WHYTE (United Kingdom) said that the 
deve!opment of natural resources was crucial to the 
process of development. The documenta before the 
Council revealed a commendably high level of activity 
by the United Nations bearing in mind the limitations 
of manpower and the size of the budgetary provision. 
The recent growth of activities in the field of natural 
resources representad an increasingly effective re­
sponse to a critical need. 

14. The question of working out a more effective 
system of priorities had been the subject of consider­
able discussion in the Council. The United Nations 
must be capable of a flexible response to changing 
needs. The Council was responsible not only for 
evaluating the programmes of the United Nations 
proper but also for reviewing the activities of the 
United Nations family as a whole and facilitating 
such a flexible response. Against that background, 
his delegation considerad that the efforts of the 
United Nations in ~he field of water resources, non­
agricultura! resources and water desalination de­
servad commendation and encouragement. 

15. He wished to express his delegation's apprecia­
tion of the fact that the documenta befare the Council 
had been circulated in good time and were accompanied 
by most useful summaries. However, he agreed with 
those who had suggested that the Council was not yet 
equipped to carry out a detailed ~valuatlon of pro­
posals in the field of natural resources development. 
His delegation saw merit in the idea of setting up 
a· more qualified body to advise the Council. Such 
a body should be genuinely expert, however; it should 
perhaps consist of persone nominated by the Secretary­
General, on the basis of their personal qualifications, 
and might be modelled on the Advisory Committee 
on the Application of Science and Technology to Devel­
opment. The development of natural resources was 
a much broader subject than industrial development 
and it would be wrong for any advisory body on natural 
resources to be made responsible to the proposed 
Industrial Development Board or for the executive 
arm to be fused with the United Nations Organization 
for Industrial Development. 

16. He was somewhat concerned by the suggestion 
made by the representativa of France at the previous 
meeting that the Administrativa Committee on Co• 
ordination (ACC) should be asked to review the pro­
posad programme for the development of non­
agricultura! resources. It was necessary to maintain 
a olear distinction between the Counoil's task of 
supervising the activities of the United Nations proper 
and ACC's task of co-ordinating the work of the 
various organizations of the United Nations fa:mily. 

17. With reference to the fourth biennial report on 
water resources develop:ment (E/4138), he wished to 
say that, from the outset, the United Kingdo:m had 
supported the proposals of UNESCO for an International 



1409th meeting- 28 February 1966 53 

Hydrological Decade. A special committee for the 
Decade had been set up and was advising the United 
Kingdom representativas to UNESCO concerning the 
hydrological aspects of UNESCO' s programme. His 
delegation was impressed by the number of water 
resources projects undertaken under the UnitedNations 
Development Programme. The United Kingdom wel­
comed the decision of the ACC Sub-Committee on 
Water Resources to undertake a conce:r.ted programme 
for supplementary training projects. His delegation 
wished to .emphasize the impoz:tance ofkeepingthe rate 
at whicli new projects were initiated in step with 
the availability of first-class specialists who could 
carry them out. 

18. With regard to the development of non-agri­
cultura! resources, he agreed with the Secretary­
General that a five-year programme such as that 
proposed could make a major contribution to the second 
half of the United Nations Development Decade. The 
only doubts felt by his delegation related to questions 
of funda and manpower; tpe proposed activities would 
require a large number of experta in the various 
fields. Concerning the proposal of the International 
Labour Organisation for a study of long-term energy 
needs in both developed and developing countries, and 
for the convening of a special conference to lay the 
foundations for an energy policy, his delegatioh shared. 
the hesitations which seemed implicit in the Secretary­
General' s comments in paragraph 58 of document 
E/4132. 

19. Of the surveys proposed in the five-year pro­
gramme itself, he felt that there were two which 
should be approached with caution. In the case of 
the survey of off-shore mineral potential in developing 
are as, he thought there had been sorne over-optimistic 
assessments of the prospects of economically feasible 
projects for obtaining submarina minerals. His dele­
gation also had some doubts regarding the proposed 
survey of potential geothermal energy resources, in 
view of the expense of exploiting geothermal steam. 
In general, however, the United Kingdom welcomed 
the Secretary-General' s report and the five-year 
survey programme, while recognizing the existence 
of problema of financing and manpower. 

20. With regard to water desalination, the United 
Kingdom's experience of desalination planta was un­
equalled by that of any other country. Three quarters 
of the world's total installed capacity for desalting 
water had. been built by United Kingdom industry. 
The flash distillation procesa which was recognized 
as the best desalination method now in use had been 
largely developed in the United Kingdom. United 
Kingdom firma were in a position to undertake con­
sultative surveys of countries • and assistance might 
also be avallable from the United Kingdom Ministry 
of Technology and universities. He mentioned those 
faots because attention tended to be fooussed on the 
possibilities of very large nuolear-powered sohemes 
which were naturally assoolated with the UnltedStates 
and 'the Soviet Union. But nuclear power became fully 
eoonomic only for the large-scale production ofwater 
and electricity. The demand for electricity was 
rarely sufficiently large in de-veloping countries, and 
the report before the Councn drew attention to the 
fact that, for the time being, the number of small 

desalination planta using fue! oU or natural gas 
was increasing. Nuclear desalination schemes were 
not neoessarily very large in soale, however, and 
two small schemes were at present under considera ... 
tion, in Tunisia anci in New York. "fhe United Kingdom 
was in a position to deliver either oonventionally 
powered plant or nuole&r-powered plant of modest 
size. · · 

21. It was thus not surprising that the United King­
dom supported the tentativa work programme outlined 
in paragraph 27 to 30 of the report (E/4142). His 
country hoped that it would be representad in the 
panel of experta suggested in paragraph 29. In 
general, his delegation endorsad the high priority 
given by the United Nations and by the International 
Atomio Energy Agency (IAEA) to work in the field 
of water desalir'1ltion both in their activities during 
the period under review and in their plana for 
the future. 

Mr. JJernandini (Pero), seoond Vice-President, 
took the Cbair. 

22. Mr. ALI (Pakistan) expressed his delegatton's 
appreoiation of the Secretary-General's valuable re­
porta on the development of non-agricultura! resouroes 
(E/4132) and the desalination of water (E/4142), 
vital problema which the developing countries oould 
not tackle without international co-operation and 
assistance. The rapid growth of population in the 
developing oountries called for the use of scientific 
knowledge and skills in locating and using resources, 
and the development of modern techniques augurad 
well for the suocess of the programmes recommended 
in the reporta. 4 

23. In addition to identifying and developing water 
resources, it was important to conserve and protect 
existing resources~ which were under constant threat 
from natural disasters. Pakistan,. for example, was 
subject to frequent cyclones and floods which brought 
tragic waste of resources and grave human misery, 
and the problema of salinity and waterlogging were 
increasingly rendering areas unfit for oultivation. His 
delegation therefore hoped thatthe Counoil would initi­
ate research and hold seminars on flood control and 
measures to reduce salinity and waterlogging as soon 
as possible. 

24. His delegation welcomed the measures outlined 
in the report on the development of non-agricultura! 
resources. Pakistan attached particular importance 
to the looation and exploitatlon of mineral resources 
and had, for example, been giving special attention 
to the development of natural gas resouroes and the 
establishment of industries based on natural gas. The 
exploration of mineral resources offered greatpossi­
bilities, but studies and explorations in thedeveloping 
oountrles had so far been inadequate, and he hoped 
that rapid progresa would be made under United Natiotts 
auspices. 

25. Pakistan was also following closely the develop­
ment of· water desalinatlon,. and was oollecting data 
relating to ita ooastal regions and off-shore islands 
whloh were deficient in water. 

26. Mr. POLXT ORTIZ (Ecuador) agreed with the 
United States representativa that the fi-ve-year survey 
programme could be broadened to include :researc~ 



54 . Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

on submarina as well as off-shore resources. The 
relatively unknown submarina world had great possi­
bilities for many countries which had not been blessed 
wlth extensiva land resources. The United Natlons 
should offer fellowshlps and technical assistance for 
researcl! on submarina mineral and food resources. 

27. The · search for minerals in the developing coun­
tries was the key to their more rapid development, 
since minerals were the basis of heavy and rnedium 
industry. Hydrological research was al so extremely 
important, since the availability and qualit.y of water 
supplies could be a decisive factor in determining 
the location of industries. Ecuador, whichhadreceived 
considerable assistance from the United Nations in 
the exploration of mineral and water resources, 

. believed that the Organization 1s activities in that field 
were of positive assistance to the developing countl·ies. 
It also attached considerable importance to the water 
desalination programmes. 

28. It was to be hoped that under the five-year survey 
programme a largar number of fellowships would be 
a warded for training in mineralogy, aerial photo­
grammetry, the technique of interdisciplinary re­
search, hydraulics and all fields covered by the survey. 
The projects should be preparad and managed by local 
personnel. 

Mr. Bouattoura (Alge:ria) :resumed the Ohai:r. 

29. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) said that desalination was becomingincreasingly 
important because water was mankind'smostvaluable 
raw material. The Secreta:ry-General's report on 
water desalination (E/4142) gave a full picture of 
measures undertaken in 1965 andtheworkprogramme 
for the futura, and was entirely acceptable to his 
delegation. He stressed that the problem required a 
highly technical approach, and the Secretariat should 
therefore work in close co-operation with IAEA, 
as well as with other interested bodies such as 
UNESCO, the World Health Organization (WHO) and 
FAO. 

30. The summary, in paragraph 19 of the report, of 
the resulta of the United Nations Seminar on the 
Economic Application of Water Desalination was 
perhaps o\Terly pessimistic, particularly with re~rd 
to dual-purpose plants. The capital investment re­
quired for such planta was certainly a major difficulty, 
but the establishment of large-scale d'llal-purpose 
plant~ was the best way of solving the pro~lem of 
prowding both power and water fo:t' the population, 
industry and irrigation. 

31. Research carried out by the USSR, the UrJted 
. States and IAEA showed that 10,000-2.0,000 :megawatt 
reactors could be· used to produce low-cost water, 
perhaps even for irrigation, and the rapid develop:tnent 
of atomic science gave reason to hope that the mínimum 
power level could 'be reduced still further. In the Soviet 
Union, a 4,000 megawatt fast reactor had been 
set up near Shevchenko, which would serve as a 
prototype for further desalination plants of 5,000-
10,000 megawatts. 

32. Beca use of its highly teohnioal nature, water 
desalination often presentad problems of financtng, 
ánd oonsideratton should be glven to the allooatiQn 

of technical assistance resouroes to that important . 
area. His country was already givingteohnicalassist­
ance to developing countries for irrigation and water 
supply projects, and desalination would become an 
important factor in such assistance. Much remained 
to be done at the international leve!, however, ~d 
he hoped that the United Nations and the specialized 
agencies would give priority to such assistanc~, taking 
into account the specific needs of indi'91dual countries. 

33. Finally, he drew attention to the ftl.ct that the 
statement in the report (E/ 4142, annex, para. 24) that 
no decision had yet been made on the source of 
energy for the two dual-purpose plants in the Soviet 
Union was inaccurate. As had already been indicated, 
those planta were to use atomic energy • 

34. Mr. GAGLIOTTI (United Nations Educational, 
Scientific a:nd Cultural Organization) said that bis 
organization had been concerned with problema re­
lating to natural resources as long ago as 1948, 
when the International Union for Conservation of 
Nature and Natural Resources had been set up under 
the auspices of UNESCO. The same year had seen 
the establishment of the Arid Zone Programme, 
under which about twenty major international symposia 
on various subjects had been held, and some thirty 
volumes of research studies had been published. 
Various institutes had been set up under the Pro­
gramme, the latest being the Central Arid Zone 
Research Institute at Jodhpur in India. The experience 
gairied from those activities haa' been the subject of 
a document entitled "New Methods of Natural Re­
sources Study", which had been submitted to the 
first session of the Advisory Committee on Natural 
Resources Research, held at UNESCO headquarters 
in September 1965. Work in various fields, inoluding 
the preparation and publication of geologioal tectonic 
and metallogenic maps, was progresssing in close co­
operation with the International Union of Geological 
Sciences. His organization was also continuing its 
assistance to developing countries in establishing or 
s trengthening research an4 teaching institutions, and 
there were now some fourteen such institutions 
financed by the United Nations Development Pro·· 
gramme. Various regional training and extended post­
graduate courses were or~.nized, and UNESCO had 
assisted in thc establishment of twelve regional and 
national scientifio documentation centres. In addition, 
information was exchanged through UNESCO's 
quarterly newsletter entitled Nature and Resources, 
which was also the bullet~n of the InternatiOña! 
Hydrological Decade. 

35. In the ecologioal field, joint agroclimatological 
studies had been undertaken with FAO and the World 
Meteorological Org~nization and two eoological sympo­
sia were planned for 1966. Work was alsoprogressing 
on the systematic study of. tropical fauna and flora, 
standardization and publioation of vegetation maps, 
and the preparation of a general work on the natural 
environment and resources of Latin Amerioa. With 
regard to nature oonservation, the organization was 
co-operating with the International Union for Con­
servation of Nature and Natural Resouroes in the 
organization of regional meetings, and was oontinulng 
its assistance to Member States in establishingnational 
parks and organizing conservation measures. 



1409th meeting - 28 February 1966 55 

36. In the important field of oceanography. UNESCO 
had sponsored the establishment of the Intergovern­
mental Oceanographic Commission, and tbe Inter­
national Indian Ocean Expedition, whicb had been 
launcbed in 1959, had ended in 1965. The data collected 
from ·tbat expedition, the largest co-ordinated oceano­
graphic research project ever undertaken, was being 
correlated and studied in Washington and Moscow, 
and would be made available to all Member States. 
Tbe Intergovernmental Oceanographic Commission 
bad also helped to plan and co-ordinate other researcb 
study projects, and the second International Oceano­
graphic Congress would be beld in Moscow in 
June 1966, under UNESCO auspices. 

37. An Advisory Committee, consisting of c;Ustin­
guished scientists from all over the world the meetings 
of which were attended by representativas of various 
United Nations and other international bodies, hadnow 
been set up to assist UNESCO in the planning and 
implementation of its activities in natural resources 
research. The organization hoped tbat that co­
ordinate~ approach wouJ.d make it possible to con­
tribute significantly to the advancement of scientific 
lmowledge and to the provision of adequate research 
and teaching facilities to Member States, so as to 
enable them to benefit from their natural resources. 

38. Mr. NAJAR (International Atomic Energy Agency) 
sa id that IAEA was actively engaged in research 
a11d studies on tbe development of water resources. 
In recognition of its efforts in that field the agree­
ment signed in 1965 between tbe Soviet Union and 
the United States provided that those countries would 
make available to the Agency copies of their reports 
&.nd would invite Agency observers to their meetings. 
The Agency was recef· tng from member States an 
increasing number of requests for evaluation and 
feasibility studies; it had participated in the feasi­
bility study conducted by tbe United States and Israel 
regarding a dual-purpose plant in. Israel. Its fiftb 
regular panel meeting on the use of ·nuclear energy 
in desalting had taken place in April 1965, and 
papera on tbat subject had been presentad at a 
number of seminars and symposia, includtng tbe first 
International Syrrrposium on Water Desalination held 
in Washington, n.o. By an agreement between the 
United States, Mexico and tbe Agency. a study group 
was set up to make a preliminary assessment of tbe 
technical and economlc practicability of a dual-pu:r-pose 
nuclear power plant for tbe soutb-western United 
states and Baja California, Mexico. Furthermore a 
mission would soon be sent to several LatinAmerican 
countries to evaluate tbe possibilities ofusingnuclear 
energy for power and desalting. 

39. Witb regard to tbe Secretary-General's report 
(E/ 4142), he wished merely to point out that the 
statement contained in paragraph 7 tbat none of the 
large-scale dual-purpose nuclear desalination pro­
jects had reacbed a stage where definite decisions 
concerning financing and construction could be made 
was inoonsistent With paragraph 4 of the annex to the 
document, which rightly indicated that specifications 
bad been issued and tendera received for suoh a plant 
in the United Arab Republic. 

40. Although nuclear power might not at present be 
the only ~~itable source of energy for desaltlng, sevcaral 

years were required to plan and build conventional 
water facilities, and it was not too soon to start 
applying nuclear technology to desalting. 

41. Mr. MANOLATOS (Greece) expressed bis dele­
gation's appreciation of the reporta containedindocu­
ments E/ 4132 and E/ 4142. He hoped tbat the important 
work of developing non-agricultura! resources and of 
water desalination would be financed from voluntary 
contributtons and would not place a strain on. tbe 
regular budget of tbe Unitcd Natlons. 

42. Mr. DE SEYNES (Under-Seoretary for Economic 
and Social Affairs) said tbat he wisbed to clarify 
twopoints wbichmighthave been insufficiently stressed· 
in bis previous statement (1408tb meeting). First, 
United Nations action in the fields of development of 
non-agricultura! resources and water desalinatlon 
must indeed be carried out in close co.-operation ·with 
such bodies as UNESCO, FAO, WHO and IAEA. 
As the representativa of the Soviet Union had pointed 
out, tbe bigbly technical nature of water desalination 
required the fullest co-operation with IAEA and other 
bodies, and the Secretariat would certainly continue 
to work very closely witb those organs. Secondly, 
many of the problema involved the latest scientific 
and technological developments, and tbe Secretariat' s 
work programme would therefore be submitted to 
tbe Advisory Committee on the Application of Science 
and Technology to Development. 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of 
· the Centre for Industrial Development ·pursuant to 

the recommendations of the United Nations Con­
ference on Trade and Development (concluded)* 
(E/4131 and Corr.l; E/L.1106) 

43. Mr. LO PEZ (Pbilippines) said tbat bis delegation 
attached great importance to the need to establisb 
and develop industries witb an export potential in. 
devel'oping countries, as a means of expanding their 
industry and diversifying tbeir exporta. In the Philip­
pines, as in otber countries, there was a need to 
develop new industries in order to restore a balance 
in the industrial sector, and his delegation bad there­
fore read tbe Secretary-General t s report (E/ 4131 
and Corr.1) witb great interest, although it was 
aware of tbe limitations on United Nations aotivities 
in the spbere of industrial development, and of tbe 
tact that tbe organization of tbose activities was in a 
state of transition. The Pbilippine delegation bad noted 
with particular interest tbe activities of the Centre 
for Industrial Development in connexion with tbe 
metal-transforming inqustries as potential export 
industries. and with export-propelled industrializa­
tlon. He boped that the studies initiated would be 
vigorously pursued and would yield valuable resulta 
before tbe end of 1966. 

44. Speaking on behalf of the co-sponsors-Ecuador, 
India, Pakistan, the United Republic of Tanzant8. and 
bis own delegation-be introduced draft resolution 
E/L.1106 and expressed the hope that it would re­
ceive the unanimous support of members of the 
Counoil. 

•Reaumed frG'm the H05th meeting. 



' 

1 
1 

f. 
r 
1 

1 

1 
¡' 

1 
¡, 
¡, 
1' 
i' 

1 
l: 

56 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

45. Mr. SUNDARA RAJAN (India) said that the 
Centre for Industrial Development had maintained 
a high standard of performance despite its limited 
resources. The proposed substantial increase in its 
budget was welcome but there weuld have to be 
further increases if the Centre was to achieve its 
objectives. 

46. Rapid industrialization was essential for the 
developing countries, in arder not only to provide 
employment opportunities and increase production 
to meet domestic demand but also ,to diversify and 
expand exporta of manufactures and semi-manu­
factures. Agricultura should be given the highest 
priority in development plans but it was itself de­
pendent on industrial development. The countries with 
the highest agricultura! productivity were also those 
which were developed industrially; in each case, 
the agricultura! revolution had followed and not pre­
ceded the industrial revolution. Industries with export 
potential could not develop in a vacuum. Unless the 
industry in question had a firm domestic base in the 
coWltry' s economy, it could not compete inter­
nationally. Industrial development was a highly com­
plex procesa, for which the developing countries re­
quired much more technical and financia! assistance 
than was currently available. There was therefore 
a need for an international agency such as the Centre 
for Industrial Development, whose staff would ha veto 
be increased considerably. 

47. It was gratifying to note that the Centre had 
initiated a number of projects connected with the 
development of manufactures a.nd semi-manufactures 
with an export potential. The study of foreign aid 
and investment for the development of export indus­
tries would be particularly fruitful; capital was the 
most important and the scarcestfactor in the success­
ful development of the developing countries' industry. 
It was to be hoped that the study would be completad 
rapidly and would enable aid-giving cmmtries to pur­
sue enlightened policies of foreign El.: ·• and invest­
ment and the developing coWltries to make the fullest 
use of the export potential of existing and planned 
industries. The project for a team of five experta 
to work jointly ·with the Nacional Financiera to find 
European markets for Mexican products and advise 
on the establishment of new industries with export 
potential should be repeated for other coWltries. In 
view of the shortage of human and financia! resources, 
such studies would hav~ to concentrate on those indus­
tries for which the developing coWltries had natural 
advantages because of the ready availability of raw 
materials, domestic markets or technical personnel. 
The Indian delegation was glad that the Centre had 
established a close working relationship with the 
secretariat of the United Natlons Conference on Trade 
and Development (UNCTAD). The expansion of the 
Centre should make it possible to Wldertake other 
projects. Eventually, however, oiÍly the United Nations 
Organization for Industrial Development wottld be able 
to meet the needs of the developing coWltries. 

48. He hoped that draft resolution E/L.1106 would 
be adopted Wlanimously. 

49. Mr. POLIT ORTIZ (Ecuador) expressed support 
for the draft resolution and en.dorsed the remarks 
made by the representativas of the Philippines and 

India. The United Nations organs which were dealing 
with the question of industrial development were 
under dynamic and capable leadershipo In view of the 
CoWlcil' s heavy agenda, it would be logical to trans-

. mit the Secretary-General' s report to the Committee 
for Industrial Development and the appropriate bodies 
of UNCTAD. 

50. Mr. FERNANDINI (Peru) al so supported the draft · 
resolutiono The developing countries were in the tragic 
position of having to spend all their export earnings 
on .ensuring their very survival. Export earnings 
should be used to pay for capital goods and to finance 
industrial developmento 

51. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publica) noted that the third preambular paragraph 
of the draft resolution reaffirmed the need to accord 
priority to industries with an export potential. He 
wondered whether such priority was absolute or part 
of a series of other priorities. Goods for domestic 
consumption seemed to be considerad less important 
than ~xports. 

52. Mr. POLIT ORTIZ (Ecuador) said that there was 
no intention to recommend exclusive priority for 
industries with export potential. Not all production 
should be exported and, in any case, export earnings 
returned to the coWltry concerned and made it possi­
ble to establish industries on a more soWld economic 
basis. 

Draft resolution E /L.1106 was adopted unanimously. 

AGENDA ITEM 14 

E lections 

53. The PRESIDENT said th.at, in accordance with 
paragraph 3 of its resolution 1090 G (XXXIX) of 
31 July 1965, the CoWlcil was required to ele.ct ten 
members of the Special Committee on Co-ordination, 
on the basis of equitable geographical representation. 

54. Mr. FERNANDINI (Peru) requested the sus­
pension of the meeting to permit consultations. 

The meeting was suspended at 5.50 p.m. and 
resumed at 6.15 p.m. 

55. The PRESIDENT informed the Council that Can­
ada, France, Iran, Pakistan, the Philippines, Sierra 
Leone, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, the 
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland_ 
the United Republic of Tanzania, the United States 
of America and Venezuela had announced that they 
were candidatas for election. 

At the invitatJon of the President~ Mr. Suarez 
(Philippines) and Miss Larsson (Sweden) acted as 
tellet's. 

A vote was taketJ by secret ballot. 
Number of ba11at papers: 
Invalid ballots: 
Number of' valid ballots: 

Number of votes obtained: 

27 
o 

2/. 

United States of America. o ••••••••• o .27 
PakiE1tan o ••••• o ••••• e • o • ., ••••••• 26 



1409th meeting- 28 February 1966 57 
Venezuela •••• o ••••••••••••• o •••• 26 
France . ......................• . 25 
Iran . ........................... • 25 
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics • • • • • • 25 
Sierra Leone . • • • • • . • • • . • • • • o • • • • • 24 
United Kingdom of Great Britain and 

Northern Ireland •. o •••••••••••••• 24 
Philippines . • . • . • • • • • • • • • . . • • • • . • 23 
Canada . ..............•.•. , ... ~ .22 
United Republic of Tanzania •.•••••.••• 20 
Sweden. . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . 1 

Litlto in U.N. 

Canada, France, Iran, Pakistan, the Philippines, 
Sierra Leone, the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland, the United States of America and Venezuela 
were elected members of the Special Committee on 
Co-ordination. 

The meeting rose at 6.55 p.m. 

10701-July 1966-1,600 




